
 
 
 

REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO   45356 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
 PRESENTATION – Homelessness Summit (Report to the Community) 
 
  

AA..  CCOONNSSEENNTT  AAGGEENNDDAA  
 

a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of the minutes from the September 7, 2010 Regular City Commission Meeting  
 

BB..  NNEEWW  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
  

a. ORD. NO. 27-10 (1st Reading) 
 An Emergency Ordinance to make Appropriations for the City of Piqua, Ohio for the  
 year 2010 
 

        b. RES. NO. R-107-10  
A Resolution approving the tax rates for the City as determined by the Miami County 
Budget Commission 
 

c. RES. NO. R-108-10 
A Resolution requesting preliminary legislation for ODOT to rehabilitate structure number 
MIA 36 11.32 located on US Route 36 approximately 0.44 miles west of Interstate Route 75 
 

d. RES. NO. R-109-10 
A Resolution amending Resolution No. C-10147 in regards to Community Reinvestment 
Area V 

 
       e. RES. NO. R-110-10 

A Resolution requesting authorization to issue a purchase order to Reynolds Inliner, LLC  
for the West Interceptor Sanitary Sewer & Siphon repair 

   
                  f. RES. NO. R-111-10 
  A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Public Safety Information Sharing 
  Records System Agreement 
 
       g. RES. NO. R-112-10 
        A Resolution awarding a contract for the MIA-Washington Avenue resurfacing project to 
  Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. 
 



 2

 
 
      

 h. RES. NO. R-113-10 
  A Resolution supporting the Fiscal -Year 2011 United States Environmental Protection 
  Agency Brownfield Assessment Program Application 
 
  i. RES. NO. R-114-10 

  A Resolution requesting authorization to issue a purchase order to Morris Heating Cooling  
 Electrical for the 2010 Mote Park Community Center Building Repairs Project 

 
j. RES. NO. R-115-10 

A Resolution authorizing the payment of funds not to exceed $219,955 to Brownfield 
Restoration Group, LLC for the work being completed in accordance with the Clean Ohio 
Assistance Fund Grant received by the Miami County Park District and certifying funds are 
available for the expenditure 

  
CC..  AADDJJOOUURRNNMMEENNTT  TTOO  EEXXEECCUUTTIIVVEE  SSEESSSSIIOONN  

a. To consider pending or imminent litigation 
 

DD..    AADDJJOOUURRNNMMEENNTT  
 
 

  



It
e

m
 

# 
P

ro
b

le
m

 
R

e
sp

o
n

se
 

A
ct

io
n

 It
em

 

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
Ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

1 
La

ck
 o

f 
u

n
d

er
st

an
d

in
g 

ab
o

u
t 

th
e 

ch
al

le
n

ge
s 

fa
ce

d
 b

y 
fa

m
ili

es
 t

h
at

 
h

av
e 

liv
ed

 in
 p

o
ve

rt
y 

fo
r 

se
ve

ra
l 

ge
n

er
at

io
n

s,
 e

ve
n

 w
h

en
 t

h
ey

 s
ee

k 
a 

m
o

re
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

lif
es

ty
le

. 

A
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y-

w
id

e,
 

sy
st

em
-w

id
e 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 is

 n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 
ad

d
re

ss
 p

o
ve

rt
y 

d
ir

ec
tl

y,
 s

ta
rt

in
g 

w
it

h
 

ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
is

su
es

 in
vo

lv
ed

 t
o

 t
h

e 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

an
d

 t
o

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
s 

in
 t

h
e 

sy
st

em
. 

 
Su

p
p

o
rt

/A
d

vo
ca

te
 M

ia
m

i C
o

u
n

ty
 B

ri
d

ge
s 

O
u

t 
o

f 
P

o
ve

rt
y 

 p
h

ilo
so

p
h

y 
in

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

 
Se

ek
 P

iq
u

a 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
Fo

u
n

d
at

io
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

  

 
Su

p
p

o
rt

 P
iq

u
a 

“C
ir

cl
es

” 
p

ro
gr

am
  

 
h

o
m

el
es

s 
lia

is
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

es
ta

b
lis

h
ed

 in
 e

ve
ry

 
sc

h
o

o
l s

ys
te

m
, i

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

P
iq

u
a 

 

2 
D

eg
re

e 
o

f 
ri

sk
 t

o
 v

ar
io

u
s 

ti
er

s 
o

f 
se

x 
o

ff
en

d
er

s 
is

 m
is

u
n

d
er

st
o

o
d

. 
Ed

u
ca

te
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y/
ag

en
ci

es
 o

n
 

m
ea

n
in

gs
 o

f 
va

ri
o

u
s 

ti
er

s 
o

f 
se

x 
o

ff
en

d
er

s 
so

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

n
 b

e 
ta

ke
n

 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 d
eg

re
e 

o
f 

ri
sk

 p
re

se
n

te
d

 b
y 

o
ff

en
d

er
. 

 
C

o
n

ta
ct

 S
h

er
if

f 
to

 d
ef

in
e 

m
ea

n
in

g 
o

f 
ti

er
s 

 
R

ep
o

rt
 f

in
d

in
gs

 in
 r

ep
o

rt
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
–

 H
S 

Ta
sk

 F
o

rc
e 

   

3 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

n
o

 c
le

ar
 d

ef
in

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

h
o

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

an
d

 t
h

e 
is

su
es

 t
h

at
 

ca
u

se
 it

. 

N
ee

d
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

 o
f 

h
o

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

an
d

 it
s 

ca
u

se
s.

 
 

En
su

re
 s

h
ar

in
g 

o
f 

re
su

lt
s 

o
f 

p
o

in
t-

in
-t

im
e 

an
d

 
o

th
er

 s
u

rv
ey

s 
co

n
d

u
ct

ed
 in

 P
iq

u
a 

an
d

 
su

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g 
ar

ea
s.

  

 
W

e
 a

cc
ep

t 
th

e 
w

o
rk

in
g 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

 o
f 

h
o

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

an
d

 “
A

t-
ri

sk
 f

o
r 

h
o

m
el

es
sn

es
s”

 a
s 

es
ta

b
lis

h
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

M
ia

m
i C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

n
ti

n
u

u
m

 o
f 

C
ar

e.
 

4 
A

ge
n

ci
es

 c
u

rr
en

tl
y 

en
ga

ge
d

 in
 t

h
e 

p
ro

b
le

m
 o

f 
h

o
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
ar

e 
fa

ci
n

g 
d

im
in

is
h

in
g 

re
so

u
rc

es
. 

C
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
re

 k
ey

 t
o

 
an

y 
so

lu
ti

o
n

s.
 

 
En

co
u

ra
ge

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
ge

n
ci

es
 t

o
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
te

 w
it

h
 

M
ia

m
i C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

n
ti

n
u

u
m

 o
f 

C
ar

e 
 a

n
d

 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
e

 in
 P

o
in

t 
In

 T
im

e 
su

rv
ey

 
 

5 
Th

o
se

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
it

h
 is

su
es

 t
h

at
 c

an
 

le
ad

 t
o

 h
o

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

h
es

it
at

e 
to

 
se

e
k 

h
el

p
 t

h
at

 is
 v

er
y 

fa
r 

o
u

ts
id

e 
o

f 
th

ei
r 

cu
rr

en
t 

n
ei

gh
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 o

r 
ci

rc
le

 o
f 

fr
ie

n
d

s.
 

W
h

ile
 s

ee
ki

n
g 

la
rg

er
 g

ro
u

p
s 

to
 

co
lla

b
o

ra
te

 w
it

h
, w

e 
m

u
st

 a
ls

o
 s

ee
k 

w
ay

s 
to

 b
ri

n
g 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
es

 t
o

 t
h

e 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

 a
n

d
 n

ei
gh

b
o

rh
o

o
d

 le
ve

l. 

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
e

 f
in

d
in

gs
 o

f 
h

o
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
su

m
m

it
 

th
ro

u
gh

 s
p

ea
ki

n
g 

en
ga

ge
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
al

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

th
ro

u
gh

 u
se

 o
f 

a 
q

u
ic

k 
fa

ct
 s

h
ee

t 
 

 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

e
d

 

6 
M

an
y 

m
o

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
 

fo
r 

p
eo

p
le

 w
ill

in
g 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
in

 
gu

id
el

in
es

 o
f 

va
ri

o
u

s 
p

ro
gr

am
s 

Ev
en

 “
n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

t”
 h

o
m

el
es

s 
d

es
e

rv
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 s

h
el

te
r 

w
h

en
 li

fe
-t

h
re

at
en

in
g 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s 
e

xi
st

 in
 t

h
ei

r 
ch

o
se

n
 

 
“C

o
ld

 S
h

el
te

r”
 s

ys
te

m
 t

o
 b

e 
es

ta
b

lis
h

ed
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
sa

fe
ty

 o
f 

al
l i

n
 m

in
d

. 

 
Sa

fe
ty

 c
o

n
ce

rn
s 

m
u

st
 b

e 
ac

kn
o

w
le

d
ge

d
 e

ve
n

 



It
e

m
 

# 
P

ro
b

le
m

 
R

e
sp

o
n

se
 

A
ct

io
n

 It
em

 

th
an

 t
h

o
se

 w
h

o
 c

an
 o

r 
w

ill
 n

o
t.

 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t.

 
d

u
ri

n
g 

th
es

e
 li

fe
 t

h
re

at
en

in
g 

cr
is

es
. 

7 
W

e 
la

ck
 a

 c
le

ar
ly

 id
en

ti
fi

ab
le

 
re

fe
rr

al
 s

o
u

rc
e 

fo
r 

h
o

m
el

es
s 

p
eo

p
le

 o
r 

th
o

se
 a

t 
ri

sk
. 

Sy
st

em
 c

o
o

rd
in

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

h
o

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

an
d

 a
t-

ri
sk

 h
o

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

m
u

st
 b

e 
a 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 p

ie
ce

 t
o

 a
n

y 
so

lu
ti

o
n

s.
 

 
En

co
u

ra
ge

 a
ll 

o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
s 

se
rv

in
g 

th
is

 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
te

 t
o

w
ar

d
s 

a 
re

gi
o

n
al

 
so

lu
ti

o
n

. 

 
P

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e 
M

ia
m

i C
o

u
n

ty
 H

u
m

an
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ir

ec
to

ry
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

M
ia

m
i C

o
u

n
ty

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

ct
io

n
 C

o
u

n
ci

l. 

8 
So

m
e 

w
it

h
 d

is
ab

ili
ti

es
 a

re
 

ex
p

lo
it

ed
 b

y 
o

th
er

 p
er

so
n

s 
w

h
o

 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

so
ci

al
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 
th

em
, b

u
t 

o
n

ly
 f

o
r 

as
 lo

n
g 

as
 t

h
ei

r 
m

o
n

th
ly

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 la

st
. 

So
m

e 
w

h
o

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 li

ve
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
tl

y 
w

it
h

 a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 f
ro

m
 c

u
rr

en
t 

p
ro

gr
am

s 
w

o
u

ld
 b

en
ef

it
 f

ro
m

 a
 s

ys
te

m
 t

h
at

 
d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 m
o

n
ey

 t
o

 t
h

em
 in

 s
m

al
le

r 
am

o
u

n
ts

 o
r 

as
-n

ee
d

ed
, a

n
d

 s
e

ek
 s

u
ch

 
as

si
st

an
ce

. 

9 
M

an
y 

o
f 

th
e 

h
o

m
el

es
s 

ar
e 

so
ci

al
 

o
u

tc
as

ts
 t

h
at

 a
tt

ra
ct

 a
tt

en
ti

o
n

, s
o

 
p

ro
gr

am
s 

th
at

 s
er

ve
 la

rg
e 

n
u

m
b

er
s 

o
f 

th
em

 a
t 

a 
ti

m
e 

ar
e 

n
o

t 
d

es
ir

ab
le

 t
o

 s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g 
n

ei
gh

b
o

rh
o

o
d

s.
   

So
lu

ti
o

n
s 

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 b
y 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

 
ag

en
ci

es
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 t
h

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n

 
th

e 
p

h
ys

ic
al

 s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

gs
 o

f 
th

e 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

.  

 
Tr

an
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 

1
0 

C
u

rr
en

t 
p

u
b

lic
ly

 f
u

n
d

ed
 t

ra
n

si
t 

d
o

es
 n

o
t 

h
av

e 
th

e 
fu

n
d

in
g 

to
 

fu
n

ct
io

n
 o

n
-d

em
an

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y,
 in

cl
u

d
in

g 
th

e 
h

o
m

el
es

s.
 

V
o

lu
n

te
er

s 
ar

e 
n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 s
ys

te
m

. 
 

D
ev

el
o

p
 a

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
lis

t 
an

d
 m

an
ag

e 
th

ro
u

gh
 a

 
n

o
n

-p
ro

fi
t 

o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 

 
W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 c

h
u

rc
h

 m
in

is
tr

ie
s.

   

1
1 

Se
rv

ic
e 

ag
en

ci
es

 t
en

d
 t

o
 e

st
ab

lis
h

 
th

ei
r 

o
w

n
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

tr
an

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 s
ys

te
m

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
n

ee
d

s 
o

f 
th

ei
r 

o
w

n
 c

lie
n

ts
. 

A
 c

en
tr

al
iz

ed
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f 
vo

lu
n

te
er

s 
w

ill
in

g 
to

 h
el

p
 t

h
o

se
 in

 n
ee

d
 g

et
 t

o
 t

h
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 
th

ey
 n

ee
d

 w
o

u
ld

 d
ec

re
as

e 
th

e 
b

u
rd

en
s 

o
n

 t
h

e 
in

d
iv

id
u

al
 a

ge
n

ci
es

 w
h

ile
 

in
cr

ea
si

n
g 

co
n

ve
n

ie
n

ce
 a

n
d

 li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 o
f 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 t

h
o

se
 w

it
h

 
n

ee
d

s.
 

 
Sh

e
lt

e
r 

1
2 

D
u

e 
to

 t
h

e 
lo

n
g-

te
rm

 n
at

u
re

 o
f 

se
x-

o
ff

en
d

er
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 

A
ll 

p
er

so
n

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 s

h
el

te
r 

in
 li

fe
 t

h
re

at
e

n
in

g 
w

ea
th

er
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s,
 

 
Sm

al
le

r 
sc

al
e 

sh
el

te
ri

n
g 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

o
p

en
ed

 
d

u
ri

n
g 

b
ad

 w
ea

th
er

 , 
e

.g
.(

“c
o

ld
” 

sh
el

te
r)

 s
h

o
u

ld
 



It
e

m
 

# 
P

ro
b

le
m

 
R

e
sp

o
n

se
 

A
ct

io
n

 It
em

 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

s 
n

ec
es

sa
ri

ly
 im

p
o

se
d

 
o

n
 la

rg
er

 s
h

el
te

rs
, i

t 
is

 d
if

fi
cu

lt
 f

o
r 

se
x 

o
ff

en
d

er
s 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h

 
re

si
d

en
ce

 o
r 

fi
n

d
 s

h
el

te
r.

 

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

se
x 

o
ff

en
d

er
s.

 
b

e 
es

ta
b

lis
h

ed
  

1
3 

Tw
o

-p
ar

en
t 

fa
m

ili
es

 s
o

m
et

im
es

 
re

je
ct

 t
em

p
o

ra
ry

 s
h

el
te

r 
in

 o
rd

er
 

to
 k

e
ep

 t
h

ei
r 

fa
m

ili
es

 t
o

ge
th

er
 in

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
. 

Te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

si
ti

o
n

al
 h

o
u

si
n

g 
is

 
n

ee
d

ed
 f

o
r 

tw
o

-p
ar

en
t 

fa
m

ili
es

 t
h

at
 a

re
 

n
o

t 
el

ig
ib

le
 b

as
ed

 u
p

o
n

 t
h

e 
cr

it
er

ia
 o

f 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

p
ro

gr
am

s.
  D

ev
el

o
p

 a
lt

e
rn

at
e 

re
so

u
rc

es
. 

 
Fa

m
ily

 A
b

u
se

 S
h

el
te

r 
in

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f 

re
h

ab
ili

ta
ti

n
g 

u
n

it
 t

o
 s

er
ve

 t
h

is
 n

ee
d

 -
  

 
Id

en
ti

fy
 o

th
er

 r
e

so
u

rc
e 

p
o

ss
ib

ili
ti

es
. 

1
4 

H
o

m
el

es
s 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

s 
th

at
 c

an
n

o
t 

o
r 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
co

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
re

st
ri

ct
io

n
s 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o
 p

ro
te

ct
 

o
th

er
 c

o
n

su
m

er
s 

o
f 

sh
el

te
rs

 s
ti

ll 
n

ee
d

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

el
em

en
ts

 in
 b

ad
 w

ea
th

er
. 

A
 m

ea
n

s 
fo

r 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
co

ld
-s

h
el

te
r 

sh
o

u
ld

 
b

e 
es

ta
b

lis
h

ed
. 

 
C

h
u

rc
h

es
 c

o
u

ld
 e

xp
lo

re
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti

n
g 

o
n

 a
 

sy
st

em
 t

h
at

 w
o

u
ld

 e
n

su
re

 “
co

ld
 s

h
el

te
r”

 
av

ai
la

b
ili

ty
  

 Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

s 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
ed

 

B
et

h
an

y 
C

en
te

r 
M

ia
m

i C
o

u
n

ty
 F

am
ily

 a
n

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

 F
ir

st
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 L
if

e 
C

e
n

te
r 

- 
P

iq
u

a 
P

iq
u

a 
A

re
a 

C
o

u
n

ci
l o

f 
C

h
u

rc
h

es
 

C
it

y 
o

f 
P

iq
u

a 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
O

ff
ic

e 
P

iq
u

a 
A

re
a 

U
n

it
ed

 W
ay

 

C
o

n
ce

rn
ed

 C
it

iz
en

s 
P

iq
u

a 
C

o
m

p
as

si
o

n
 N

et
w

o
rk

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l o

n
 R

u
ra

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
P

iq
u

a 
D

ai
ly

 C
al

l 

D
ay

to
n

 D
ai

ly
 N

ew
s 

P
u

re
 F

lo
w

 F
ai

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t,
 L

LC
 

G
at

ew
ay

 Y
o

u
th

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
R

iv
er

si
d

e 
o

f 
M

ia
m

i C
o

u
n

ty
 

G
re

en
e 

St
re

et
 U

n
it

ed
 M

et
h

o
d

is
t 

C
h

u
rc

h
 

Sa
fe

h
av

e
n

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h
 C

en
te

r 

H
an

d
s 

O
n

 W
es

t 
C

en
tr

al
 O

h
io

 
So

u
th

vi
ew

 N
ei

gh
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 A

ss
o

ci
at

io
n

 

M
ia

m
i C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

n
ti

n
u

u
m

 o
f 

C
ar

e 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 
Th

e 
So

ci
et

y 
o

f 
In

d
w

e
lle

rs
 

M
ia

m
i C

o
u

n
ty

 F
am

ily
 A

b
u

se
 S

h
el

te
r 

W
e

st
m

in
st

er
 P

re
sb

yt
e

ri
an

 C
h

u
rc

h
 

 



 1

                                                                                                                                                                                       
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday September 7, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
 

Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present were 
Commissioners Vogt, Terry, and Wilson.  Absent: Martin. 
 
Mayor Fess asked for a motion to excuse Commissioner Martin from the September 7, 2010 Piqua 
City Commission Meeting.  No motion was made to excuse Commissioner Martin.  
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Approval of the minutes from the August 17, 2010 Regular Piqua City Commission meeting, and the 
August 30, 2010 Piqua City Commission Work Session 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that the minutes of the August 17, 
2010 Regular Piqua City Commission meeting, and the Piqua City Commission Work Session of 
August 30, 2010 be approved. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ORD. NO. 24-10 (3rd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance determining to proceed with and levying assessments for the improvement of Riverside 
Drive Street Reconstruction 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the third reading of Ordinance No. 24-10 to request authorization 
for the submission of the unpaid sidewalk, curb and gutter assessments to be certified to the county 
auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax duplicate. Mr. Enderle stated 48% of the residents 
have chosen to have the assessments applied to their property taxes at this time.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 24-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Ordinance No. 24-10 be 
adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson Vogt, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. Mayor 
Fess then declared Ordinance No. 24-10 adopted. 
 
ORD. NO. 25-10 (2nd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to levy special assessments to pay for the cost of nuisance abatement assessments 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the second reading for residents to either pay the assessments, or 
have them assessed with their property taxes for a five or ten year period. 
 
City Manager Enderle asked that the three reading rule be waived in order to get the assessments to 
the county by the September 13, 2010 deadline. 
 
 
 



 2

Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 25-10. 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to suspend the rule requiring 
Ordinance No. 25-10 to be read fully and distinctly on three separate days. Voice vote, Aye: Terry, 
Wilson, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Ordinance No. 25-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  Mayor 
Fess then declared Ordinance No. 25-10 adopted. 
 
ORD NO, 26-10 (2nd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to levy special assessments to pay Miami County for demolition per terms of National 
Stabilization Program Grant Agreement 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the second reading on the joint effort with Miami County 
Commissioners to enter into a Federal Grant Program to use Federal Funds to demolish buildings in 
Shelby and Miami Counties. Piqua is entering into a sub recipient agreement to demolish buildings 
within the city limits, and that agreement provides that half of the cost of demolition must be assessed 
to the property owner.  The National Stabilization program grant provides funds to demolish properties 
not in compliance with city codes, said City Manager Enderle. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 26-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to suspend the rule requiring 
Ordinance No. 26-10 to be read fully and distinctly on three separate days. Voice vote, Aye: Fess, 
Vogt, Terry, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Ordinance No. 26-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  Mayor 
Fess then declared Ordinance No. 26-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-98-10 
 
A Resolution authorizing a contract with Fifth Third Bank, JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. U.S. Bank, 
N.A., Unity National Bank and MainSource Bank to serve as a depository for Public Funds 
 
City Manager Enderle explained state regulations as prescribed within Section 135 of the Ohio 
Revised Code requires depository agreements to be in force before political subdivisions can maintain 
interim funds and bank balances at qualifying financial institutions.  Our current agreements with these 
banks will expire on September 30, 2010 and this resolution would allow the city to deposit public 
funds with these institutions, and must be adopted by a resolution.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-98-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-98-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-98-10 adopted. 
 
 
 
 
 



 3

RES. NO. R-99-10 
 
A Resolution accepting the resignation of Bradley S. Boehringer as a member of the Tree Committee 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this resolution is accepting the resignation of Bradley S. Boehringer as a 
member of the Tree Committee for personal reasons. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-99-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-99-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-99-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. 100-10 
 
A Resolution accepting the resignation of Jimmie A. Reedy as a member of the Board of Zoning 
Appeals 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this resolution is accepting the resignation of Jimmie A. Reedy as a 
member of the Board of Zoning Appeals since he is unable to meet his obligation due to work 
commitments. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-100-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-100-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Terry, Wilson, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-100-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-101-10 
 
A Resolution extending a contract to Kleingers & Associates for a Stormwater Mapping System 
 
Devon Alexander, Stormwater Coordinator, gave a brief summary on the mapping system updated 
review.   Mayor Fess asked Mr. Alexander to explain what types of things are being mapped at this 
time.  Mr. Alexander explained they are locating the manholes, catch basins, noting the pipe size, the 
flow of the stormwater, and loading all of the information in the GIS System for future reference. 
 
There was discussion on the reason for the large number of structures, and why the numbers were so 
far off.  It was stated again that they are working from very old outdated maps, thus the reason for the 
project now.  City Manager Enderle stated other communities are having the same problems, and the 
EPA Mandates that this be completed. Up to the seventies or eighties no records were normally kept 
on the number or locations of the structures, said City Manager Enderle.  Several questions were 
asked concerning oil being dumped down a storm drain, and if this would enable the city to locate 
where it came from and try and stop the flow, and if they have found any storm sewers connected to 
any sanitary sewers?  Mr. Alexander stated yes, the oil can be traced from the source by using the 
new maps and the GIS System, and so far they have not found any storm sewers connected to any of 
the sanitary sewers. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Jim Cruse, County Rd, 25-A, voiced his concern over the need for the count of the structures at this 
time, and the cost of the project.   
 



 4

Joe Drapp, Park Avenue, a member of the Stormwater Advisory Board came forward and stated the 
Stormwater Board was unanimous in their support of this project.  This is something that needs to be 
done, and cannot be done by city employees, and he considers it money well spent, said Mr. Drapp. 
 
There was discussion on the lack of previous records being kept, and it was stated that this is not just 
the case in Piqua, all commissions are facing the same request by the EPA.  By having this 
information in the GIS System the City would be able to track any problems or potential spills and 
contain them, and make necessary repairs to damaged lines. Mr. Alexander reminded the 
Commission that Kleingers has kept the same price of $24.98 per structure as they quoted for the first 
2000 structures for the completion of the project. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-101-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Terry, Vogt, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-101-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-102-10 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to HPI, LLC for combustion turbine inspections and life extension 
evaluation 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this resolution would allow the city to enter into a contract with HPI, LLC 
for inspection and life extension of the Power System’s two combustion turbines for a total cost not to 
exceed $70,000. 
 
Power Systems Director, Ed Krieger gave a brief overview of what the peaking units are used for and 
when they are utilized.  Piqua’s General Electric Frame 5 combustion turbine was installed new in 
1971 at a cost of  $2.7 million and is rated at 21,000 KW.  The other unit is a Westinghouse 191G and 
was built in 1965 and was purchased used and installed in 1990 at a cost of $2.2 million and is rated 
at 17,000 KW.  Piqua has a long history with HPI and they have provided the city with combustion 
turbine engineering and consulting services for the past twenty years, said Mr. Krieger.  The Piqua 
Energy Board unanimously recommended the City Commission award the contract to HPI.LLC at their 
regular Board Meeting held on August 24, 2010. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-102-10. 
 
Commissioner Terry asked if the cost of the inspections were budgeted in the 2010 Budget?  Mr. 
Krieger stated yes, there was $100,000 budgeted for this project in the 2010 budget. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-102-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  Mayor 
Fess then declared Resolution No. R-102-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-103-10 
 
A Resolution requesting preliminary authorization for the resurfacing and berm stabilization of State 
Route 66 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this would authorize the City of Piqua to enter into an agreement with 
ODOT to do the resurfacing of State Route 66 from the (Forest Hill Cemetery) north corporation limit of 
Piqua to the Miami/Shelby County line in the City of Piqua.  ODOT requires preliminary legislation from 
the local jurisdiction as part of their programming process. The City of Piqua will not have any financial 
involvement in this project, and the project will be completed in 2014, said City Manager Enderle. 
 
 
 
 



 5

Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-103-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-103-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-103-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-104-10 
 
A Resolution preliminary authorization for the pavement planing and resurfacing of US Route 36 and 
State Route 185 within the City of Piqua 
 
City Manager Enderle stated ODOT would pay the costs for pavement planing and resurfacing of USR 
36 from Downing Street to Spring Street and on SR 185 from Washington Avenue to Spring Street.  
This resolution would allow ODOT to complete the programming for the project, which is scheduled for 
late 2011.  The total cost to the City of Piqua would be $120,000 out of the $600,000which is 20%, 
with the money to be budgeted in the 2011 budget, said Mr. Enderle. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-104-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-104-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-104-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-105-10 
 
A Resolution requesting preliminary legislation for the bridge replacement on Statler Road over 
Interstate Route 75 
 
City Manager stated this resolution is a request for authorization to enter into an agreement with 
ODOT for the replacement of the Statler Road Bridge over Interstate 75.  This project is scheduled for 
2013 with the City of Piqua having no financial responsibility. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-105-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-105-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-105-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-106-10 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Walls Brothers Asphalt Company, Inc. for the 2010 Street 
Resurfacing Program 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this resolution authorizes a contract to Walls Brothers Asphalt for the 
2010 Street Resurfacing Program for a total cost not to exceed $241,000.  The streets included in this 
years paving program are:  W. High Street from Sunset Dr. to Lambert Drive; Lambert Drive from W. 
High Street to Wilshire Drive; Commerce Drive from Sunset to R.M. Davis Parkway (24’ width). 
 
 
 
 
 



 6

City Engineer, Amy Havenar stated the City of Piqua has completed over 2-2 ½ miles of paving this 
year. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-106-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-106-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Terry, and Fess.  Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-106-10 adopted. 
 
OTHER 
 
Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple gave a brief update thru August 2010 on the Fort Piqua Plaza 
Operating Summary. Ms. Holtzapple went over the revenues and expenditures including the 
reimbursements and the transfer in Fund 001 giving the new totals.  Ms. Holtzapple stated they have 
had six or seven new rental contracts since the last meeting, and have received $10,000 from Toon 
P’s, and are looking forward to the upcoming holiday season. 
 
There was discussion on several items including why the telephone charges were up and where Toon 
P’s stands on their back rent.  Ms. Holtzapple stated the phone charges also include cable and 
internet fees, and that Toon P’s rent is now paid up through June of 2010 at this time. 
 
Economic Development Update 
Presented by - Mr. Bill Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Director of Economic Development 
 
Mr. Murphy gave a brief power point presentation on the Joint Economic Development District (JEED) 
at County Road 25 South and I-75 and explained the process. 
 
There was a brief discussion on who would provide law enforcement in the area, would it possibly be 
the Township, and what Township is this area located in.  Mr. Murphy stated the law enforcement 
would be negotiated when completed, and the new area would be located in both Washington and 
Concord Townships. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Roy Howard, Spiker Road, announced the Lockington Fire Department is having a Parade and a Car 
Show on Saturday September 11, 2010. 
 
Jim Hemmert, Boone Street, came forward and stated he has been working with the Miami Valley 
Regional Planning Commission on a study of the Bike Path usage, and stated on a Wednesday 289 
people went through French Park with 108 walking and 173 biking, and on a Sunday 460 people went 
through French Park with 137 walking and 319 biking. 
 
Mr. Hemmert stated he participated in a Bicycle Safety Plan with the Piqua Police Department.  A 
video was made on the Rules and Regulations on the Streets, and there are plans to show the video 
on APTA and in the schools, and to any service organizations that request it. 
 
Mr. Hemmert reminded citizens that on Saturday September 25th MainStreet Piqua is hosting Dancing 
in the Moonlight on Main Street from 5:00 P.M. – 9:00 P.M.  Also the 6th Annual Stride & Ride will be 
held the same evening beginning at Riverside Drive and ending at Lock Nine Park on the Bike Path 
and luminaries will be lighting the path. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked Mr. Hemmert for his dedication and volunteering in the City of Piqua. 
 
 
 
 



 7

Kevin Pryfogle, N. Downing Street, came forward and stated he does not support (the recall) what is 
happening in the City of Piqua, and he supports the Commission, and respects the office of 
Commissioner.  Mr. Pryfogle feels there is a lot of negativity in the city and he would like to see more 
positive comments, further stating we are all in this together.  Mr. Pryfogle stated he wanted to publicly 
thank City Engineer Amy Havenar for always providing the answers to the questions he has asked. 
 
Ruth Koon, Park Avenue, came forward and asked Law Director Stacy Wall to explain the Recall 
Process, so citizens are better informed. 
 
Law Director Wall explained how the recall process would be followed from the initiation of the 
petitions to the end result if a Special Election should need to be held.  Ms. Wall further explained who 
would be eligible to run for the various Commission seats in each of the wards, stating by the City 
Charter the current Commissioner would not be able to run for their seat.  Ms. Koon inquired if the 
petitioners would have any financial outlay, and if the petitioners were required to have legal council.  
Ms. Wall stated no, it would be responsibility of the City to pay for the Special Election and could cost 
the City up to $17,000, and no, it is not required that the petitioners obtain legal council. Ms. Koon 
stated the community needs to move forward and to respect each other’s views, and keep the 
betterment of the community in mind.  Ms. Koon asked citizens to contact the four Commissioners and 
offer their support. 
 
Bill Shinall, New Haven Road, voiced his opinion on the recall of the four City Commissioners, stating 
he hopes things work out. 
 
City Commission Comments 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he has heard a lot of complaining about the cost of the new computer 
system with people stating it is a “million dollar computer system”.  Commissioner Vogt further 
explained the cost of the computer system was only $619,075, and could be less than that because of 
the contingency amount of $203,127 that was built into it for unexpected expenses. Commissioner 
Vogt went on to explain money is needed for maintenance regardless if a new computer system is 
purchased or the old system is kept. 
 
Commissioner Vogt further explained that the rumors that are spreading about the city possibly using 
part-time or volunteer fireman in the future are just rumors he stated. Commissioner Vogt further 
explained they did make a visit to another town to see how they were using part-time fireman, but 
these were certified working fireman that worked their off duty days from other departments close by.                  
 
Commissioner Wilson stated one of his goals as Commissioner is to lessen the negativity in the 
community and the recall is not helping to do that.  The recall could possibly cost the city roughly 
$17,000 and this is something he feels the city should not have to do.  Commissioner Wilson stated he 
would like to challenge the P.O.I.N.T. Group to pay the cost of the recall election, and further stated 
citizens voted in the last two elections for the Commissioners they wanted to represent them and he 
feels they should not have to vote again. Commissioner Wilson thanked all the citizens who have 
called him in support and disagreed with the recall. 
 
Commissioner Terry announced the North Parks Neighborhood Association will meet on September 
9th at 7:00 P.M. at Kiwanis Park and invited residents to attend. 
 
Commissioner Terry also thanked citizens for their telephone calls of support, stating there are a lot of 
positive things going on in Piqua to focus on rather than all of the negative things.  We are in the 
middle of trying to recruit a new City Manager and we to have a budget that we have to live within just 
like the residents, said Commissioner Terry. 
 
Mayor Fess congratulated all the committee members and volunteers on another successful Heritage 
Festival. 
 
 
 



 8

Mayor Fess read a prepared statement that has been reviewed and approved by all of the 
Commissioners concerning the recall.  (See enclosed statement). 
 
Adjournment  
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adjourn from the Regular Piqua 
City Commission Meeting at 9:25 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: No.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

          _____________________________ 
                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















2010 2010 2010 REVISED 
ACCOUNT APPROPRIATIONS SUPPLEMENT APPROPRIATIONS

Fund 001 General Fund
City Building
Personal Services/Administrative Support $50,814 ($18,000) $32,814
Operation and Maintenance $73,635 $18,000 $91,635
Allocated Expenses ($29,340) ($29,340)
   Total City Building $95,109 $0 $95,109

City Commission
Operation and Maintenance $44,913 $1,604 $46,517

City Manager
Operation and Maintenance $20,311 $5,000 $25,311
Allocated Expenses ($180,981) ($3,660) ($184,641)
  Total City Manager ($160,670) $1,340 ($159,330)

Health
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds $0 $198 $198

General Government
Operation and Maintenance $201,930 $35,000 $236,930

Transfers
Transfer to Forest Hill Mausoleum Fund 110 $5,650 $24,350 $30,000

Fund 101 Street Maintenance Fund
Operation and Maintenance $1,093,139 $35,000 $1,128,139
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds $0 $25 $25
TOTAL $1,093,139 $35,025 $1,128,164

Fund 103 Street Income Tax Fund
Operation and Maintenance $276,083 $44,800 $320,883
Capital Outlay (including labor) $1,690,399 ($44,800) $1,645,599
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds $63,816 $28,853 $92,669
TOTAL $2,030,298 $28,853 $2,059,151

Fund 106 Public Safety Fund
014 Police Department
Operation and Maintenance $577,999 $33,117 $611,116

Fund 110 Forest Hill Mausoleum Fund 
Operation and Maintenance $5,650 $24,350 $30,000

Fund 112 Comprehensive Housing Improvement Plan 2010
Operation and Maintenance $0 $16,000 $16,000

Fund 119 C.H.I.P Program Income Fund
Operation and Maintenance $24,945 $4,091 $29,036

Fund 125 Insurance Reserve Fund
Operation and Maintenance $300,000 $15,950 $315,950

Fund 127 Enterprise Zone Application Funds
Operation and Maintenance $450 $150 $600

Fund 144 COAF Hospital Demolition Fund

BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected or appointed 
thereto concurring:

ORDINANCE NO. 27-10
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE 

CITY OF PIQUA, OHIO FOR THE YEAR 2010

Whereas, Section 5705.38 empowers the municipal legislative authority to pass supplemental appropriations measures as it finds 
necessary; and therefore:





1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of September 21, 2010  
 

   
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Assistant City Manager & Finance Director 
  
SUBJECT: Emergency Appropriation Ordinance for the Year 2010 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
Approve the Ordinance No. 27-10 accepting the Emergency Ordinance to make 
Appropriations for the City of Piqua for the year 2010. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
I am requesting approval of Ordinance No. 27-10 accepting the Emergency Ordinance to 
make Appropriations for the City of Piqua for the year 2010.  Based on the need for the 
Departments to meet grant and other commitments, I am requesting that the three reading rule 
be waived and that this Ordinance be passed on an emergency basis. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Every year about this time, we request a supplemental appropriation.  This is due in part to the 
requirement that we presented the 2010 annual budget to you in early November 2009 before 
all project timing and costs are known.  Projects expecting to be done last year will sometimes 
carryover into this year.  During the current fiscal year, unexpected expenses do occur and this 
supplemental appropriation allows us to more accurately reflect these changes in our financial 
statements.  Please see “Exhibit A” for detailed explanation. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1)  Approve Ordinance No. 27-10 accepting the Emergency Ordinance to make 
 Appropriations for the City of Piqua for the year 2010. 
2) Approve Ordinance No. 27-10 accepting the Emergency Ordinance to make 
 Appropriations for the City of Piqua for the year 2010 with changes being made to the 
 amounts disclosed. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
1)    This alternative will allow for the departments to meet grant and other commitments as 
 needed for the continued smooth operations of the City.  
2)    This alternative will also allow for operations, but may hinder the ability to meet grant 
 requirements and other commitments. 



 Page 2 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Passage of this Ordinance will allow the City to continue operating and expenditure levels will 
continue to be reviewed and closely monitored throughout the upcoming months.  Any 
additional adjustments needed will be requested in the final appropriation done annually each 
December. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
This Ordinance is declared an emergency for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
health or safety in the City of Piqua and shall take effect and be in force from and after 
passage. 
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
Section 5705.38 of the Revised Code empowers this Commission to pass supplemental 
appropriations measures as it finds necessary to preserve and ensure the overall welfare of the 
City. 
  
 
 
 
 
 



General Fund (001)

City Building
Personal Services/Administrative Support (18,000)$            Employee Retirement
Operation and Maintenance 18,000$              Replaced by purchased service

City Commission
Operation and Maintenance 1,604$                Video taping fees

City Manager
Operation and Maintenance 5,000$                City Manger Advertising
Allocated Expenses (3,660)$              

Health
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds 198$                   Refund

General Government
Operation and Maintenance 35,000$              Econ Dev Subsidy 135

Transfers from General Fund to other funds
Transfer to Forest Hill Mausoleum Fund 110 24,350$              2009 remodeling finished in 2010

Net Increase to General Fund 62,492$             

Streets Fund (101)
Operation and Maintenance 35,000$              Salt
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds 25$                     Refund

Total Streets (101) 35,025$             

Street Income Tax Fund (103)
Operations & Maintenance 44,800$              Resurfacing needed
Capital (44,800)$            Ada ramp not needed
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds 28,853$              Sib loan payment finalized

Total Street Income Tax (103) 28,853$             

Safety Fund (106)
Police Department
Operation and Maintenance 33,117$              2009 arra grant carry over to 2010

Forest Hill Mausoleum Fund (110)
Operation and Maintenance 24,350$              2009 remodeling project carry over to 2010

Comprehensive Housing Improvement Plan 2010 Fund (112)
Operation and Maintenance 16,000$              New grant added

C.H.I.P Program Income Fund (119)
Operation and Maintenance 4,091$                Use all available funs for rental rehab needs

Insurance Reserve Fund (125)
Operation and Maintenance 15,950$              Insurance cost increase

Enterprise Zone Application Fund (127)
Operation and Maintenance 150$                   New Clean Ohio grant

COAF Hospital Deomlition Fund (144)
Operation and Maintenance 199,903$            New Grant Awarded

Hotel Rehabilitation Fund (301)
Operation and Maintenance 2,280$                Historic Preservation Fee

Non Government/Transfers/Refunds 221$                   Move left over funds to General Fund

Ordinance 27-10 Revised Appropriation Comparison to Original Exhibit A



Total Hotel Rehabilitation Fund (301) 2,501$               



North Co 25A Reconstruction Fund (302)
Operation and Maintenance 11,907$              Finalization of 25A reconstruction

Captial (11,852)$            

Total N Co 25A Reconstruct. Fund (302) 55$                    

Water System Fund (403)
Operation and Maintenance 98,417$              CDM Wellfield study

Golf Course Fund (409)
Operation and Maintenance 50,000$              Stream Correction grant estimated 2010 usage

Stormwater Utility Fund (411)
Personal Service/Administrative Support (135,709)$          

Operation and Maintenance (115,352)$          

Capital Outlay (includes labor) (337,000)$          

Total Stormwater Utility Fund (411) (588,061)$         

Overall Total (17,157)$           

Break Down of Total
Grants & Reimbursements 266,053$            
Project Carryovers to 2010 81,817                
Expense Reductions/Refunds (365,027)            
Total (17,157)$           

Per Commission request



RESOLUTION NO. R-107-10 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TAX RATES FOR  
THE CITY AS DETERMINED BY THE MIAMI COUNTY 
BUDGET COMMISSION 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on August 30, 2010, the Miami County Budget Commission has, 
pursuant to general law, certified the following rates of tax to be levied in the City of 
Piqua for municipal purposes on the general tax duplicate of 2010, subject to any 
additional levies approved by the electorate; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said certified rates of tax require the approval of this 
Commission;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The rates of tax to be levied as follows in the City of Piqua for 
municipal purposes on the general tax duplicate of 2010 (subject to any additional 
levies approved by the electorate) are hereby approved and certified; 
 
  FUND    MILLS  AMOUNT 
   
  Ten Mill Limitation 
  General   3.70  $1,234,845 
  Police Pension    .30       100,123 
  Fire Pension     .30       100,123 
 
  No Limitation 
  General Conservancy     .12   $    40,049 
 
 
 SEC. 2: The Clerk of this Commission is directed to file a certified copy 
of this Resolution with the Miami County Auditor forthwith; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of September 21, 2010  
 

   
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Assistant City Manager & Finance Director 
  
SUBJECT: Resolution Approving the Tax Rates for the City as Determined by the Miami  
  County Budget Commission 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
Approve the Resolution No. R-107-10 approving the tax rates for the City as determined by 
the Miami County Budget Commission. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
I am requesting approval of Resolution No. R-107-10 approving the tax rates for the City as 
determined by the Miami County Budget Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Every year about this time, we request an approval of the certified tax rates which will be used 
to levy property tax on all general duplicates for 2010 to be collected in 2011.  These certified 
rates require the approval of our Commission and certifications to Miami County before 
October 1, 2010. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1)  Approve Resolution No. R-107-10 for the approval of the tax rates for the City as 
 determined by the Miami County Budget Commission.  The tax rates are unchanged 
 from last year. 
2) Do not approve Resolution No. R-107-10 and cause our revenues to drop substantially. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
1)    This alternative will allow for the normal collection of real estate taxes of Piqua 
 properties by the Miami County Treasurer’s office. 
2)    This alternative will not allow the County to assess the real estate property taxes for 
 properties located in Piqua on our behalf causing a substantial drop in our revenues.   



 Page 2 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Passage of this Resolution will allow the City to continue to receive the collection of property 
tax revenue from the County.  These revenues are vitally important to the General Fund and 
our day to day operations. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
Passage will allow the City of Piqua to continue to receive the normal collection of real estate 
taxes as approved by our citizens and used to provide various services to them. 
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
We are permitted to pass this legislation for the amounts approved by the Miami County 
Budget Commission; however, if we wish to levy any additional monies, it would need to be 
approved by the voters. 
  
 
 
 
 
 





RESOLUTION NO. R-108-10 
 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING PRELIMINARY 
LEGISLATION FOR ODOT TO REHABILITATE 
STRUCTURE NUMBER MIA 36 11.32 LOCATED ON 
US ROUTE 36 APPROXIMATELY 0.44 MILES WEST 
OF INTERSTATE ROUTE 75 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation requests preliminary 
legislation for the rehabilitation of a structure located on US Route 36 approximately 
0.44 miles west of the junction of Interstate Route 75, City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio.  
 
 SEC. 1:  Project Description 

WHEREAS, the State has identified the need for the described project: 
 
 This project proposes the rehabilitation of deteriorated backwalls, expansion 
joints, and approach slabs, including necessary structural steel repairs on the 
structure located at approximately 0.44 Miles west of the junction of Interstate Route 
75 (Structure File Number 5500095) within the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC.2:  Consent Statement 
 Being in the public interest, the LPA (City of Piqua) gives consent to the 
Director of Transportation in the above-described project. 
 
 SEC. 3:  Cooperation Statement 
 The LPA shall cooperate with the Director of Transportation in the above-
described project as follows: 
 
 The LPA has no obligation for costs for the project as described in Section I.  
ODOT will provide all Federal-aid and State funds as set aside by the Director of 
Transportation for the financing of this improvement from funds allocated by the 
Federal Highway Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation. 
 

In addition, the LPA also agrees to pay One-Hundred (100%) of those 
features requested by the LPA which are determined by the State and Federal 
Highway Administration to be unnecessary for the Project. 

 
If curb ramps are constructed by ODOT in compliance with the Americans 

with Disabilities Act, future maintenance of installed sidewalk curb ramps shall be the 
responsibility of the City.  The City shall adjust any existing castings, as required, 
with City forces. 
 
 SEC. 4:  Utilities and Right-Of-Way Statement 
 The LPA agrees that all right-of-way (if applicable) required for the described 
project will be acquired and/or made available in accordance with current State and 



Federal regulations.  The LPA also understands that right-of-way costs include 
eligible utility costs. 
 
 The LPA agrees that all utility accommodation, relocation and reimbursement 
will comply with the current provisions of 23 CFR 645 and the ODOT Utilities Manual. 
 
 SEC. 5:  Maintenance 
 Upon completion of the Project, and unless otherwise agreed, the LPA shall: 
(1) provide adequate maintenance for the Project in accordance with all applicable 
state and federal law, including, but not limited to, Title 23, U.S.C. Section 116; (2) 
provide ample financial provisions, as necessary, for such maintenance of the 
Project; (3) maintain the right-of-way, keeping it free of obstructions; and (4) hold 
said right-of-way inviolate for public highway purposes. 
 
 SEC. 6: Authority to Sign 
 The City Manager of the City of Piqua is hereby empowered on behalf of the 
City of Piqua to enter into agreements with the Director of Transportation necessary 
to complete the above-described project.  
  
 SEC. 7: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of September 21, 2010 

   
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Amy Havenar, City Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Preliminary Legislation with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) 

for the rehabilitation of a deteriorated structure located on US Route 36 
approximately 0.44 miles west of Interstate Route 75 (IR-75).  

 
 
PURPOSE:   
Approve the resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with the Ohio 
Department of Transportation (ODOT) for the rehabilitation of the East Ash Street (US Route 
36) Bridge located over the Great Miami River.     
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval of the Resolution to allow for ODOT to continue with their programming of the 
rehabilitation of the East Ash Street Bridge.   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As with any ODOT project, ODOT is required to receive Legislation from a local entity prior 
to commencement of work within that entity.  Even thought the bridge is located within the 
City, House Bill 67 states that “The Director of Transportation is responsible for the 
construction, reconstruction, major maintenance and repair, and operation of all bridges 
located on the state highway system within a municipal corporation”.   
 
This being an ODOT project, ODOT will be responsible for all aspects of the project.  The 
Engineering Department will be in communication with ODOT throughout the planning and 
design phases and keep the Commission apprised of any changes as the project approaches 
construction.  
 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve the Resolution to allow the City Manager to enter into an agreement with ODOT.     
2) Do not approve the Resolution and have ODOT abandon the US Route 36 Bridge 

rehabilitation project.      
 



 Page 2 
 

DISCUSSION: 
This project will involve the rehabilitation of deteriorated back walls, expansion joints, 
and approach slabs, including necessary structural steel repairs on the structure.  The 
project is scheduled for sale in State Fiscal Year 2014, therefore, the rehabilitation 
work will not interfere with the E. Ash Street Reconstruction Project which has a sale 
date of November 2011. 
        
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
There is no financial participation required of the City for the completion of this project.  
 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
Programming the repairs of this bridge is necessary to ensure the safety of the traveling 
public.  This project will also enhance the aesthetics and the drivability of this portion of the 
roadway.  The project will be an extension of the construction improvements currently 
underway on the USR 36 Bridge over IR-75, in addition to tying directly into the East Ash 
Street Reconstruction project improvements.             
       
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The common theme in the Comprehensive Plan Update was to improve the gateways to the 
City of Piqua.  This area was identified as one of the main gateways within the Plan.  This 
project will complete the reconstruction of the East Ash Street corridor from IR-75 to Spring 
Street.   
 



 1

RESOLUTION NO. R-109-10 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. C-10147 IN REGARDS TO 
COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA V  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Piqua adopted Resolution No. C-
10147 on June 20, 1994, establishing Community Reinvestment Area V in the City of 
Piqua, and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Piqua has reviewed a new 
housing study of the area, and 
 

WHEREAS, the housing study has found that there is a specific area where 
housing facilities are located and where new housing construction and repair of existing 
facilities or structures are discouraged, and 
 

WHEREAS, the maintenance and construction of structures in said area would 
serve to encourage economic stability and maintain real property values, and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Piqua has found where 
Resolution No. C-10147 should be amended, and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected hereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC.  1: Resolution No. C-10147 is hereby amended to be read as in 
Section 2 through Section 8 of this Resolution. 
 

SEC. 2: Community reinvestment area v shall now be bounded as follows: 
 
Commencing at the intersection of Great Miami River and East Ash Street;  
 
Thence in an easterly direction along East Ash Street to the municipal corporate limits of 
the date of this resolution.  
 
Thence in a southerly direction along the municipal corporate limits to Garbry Road. 
 
Thence in a westerly direction along Garbry Road to the intersection of Garbry Road and 
the Piqua Activity Trail for Health. 
 
Thence easterly along the Piqua Activity Trail for Health to Troy-Sidney Road,  
 
Thence southerly to Statler Road (excluding Parcel No. J27-036500 and Parcel No. J27-
036550); 
 
Thence westerly to the intersection of Statler Road and the CSX Rail Line (excluding 
Parcel No. J27-036400, Parcel No. J27-054800, Parcel No. J27-054801 and Parcel No. 
J27-054802);  
 



 2

Thence southerly along the CSX Rail Line to the southern corporation limits of the City of 
Piqua as of August 1, 2010;  
 
Thence westerly to Piqua-Troy Road;  
 
Thence northerly to a Rail Spur;  
 
Thence easterly to the intersection of the Rail Spur to Statler Road/Garnsey Street;  
 
Thence westerly along Statler Road/Garnsey Street to the Great Miami River;  
 
Thence northerly along the Great Miami River to the point of beginning herein described.   
 

SEC. 3: The above described area is one in which housing facilities are 
located and new housing construction and repair of existing facilities or structures are 
discouraged; 
 

SEC. 4:  Within said area tax exemption for improvements to real property as 
described in Section 3735.67 of the Ohio Revised Code are hereby authorized for the 
following periods; 
 

VALUE OF CONSTRUCTION OR 
REHABILITATION FOR RESIDENTIAL 

PROJECTS 

EXEMPTION PERIOD 

$10,000 TO $50,000 Five years for every structure containing 
not more than two dwelling units. 

$50,000 TO $100,000 Five years for every structure containing 
not more than two family dwelling units. 

$50,000 TO $100,000 Eight years for every structure containing 
more than two family dwelling units. 

In excess of $100,000 Ten years for every structure containing 
not more than two family dwelling units. 

In excess of $100,000 Twelve years for every structure containing 
more than two family dwelling units. 

 
 

VALUE OF CONSTURCTION OR 
REHABILITATION FOR COMMERICAL 

AND INDUSTRIAL PROJECTS 

EXEMPTION PERIOD 

$25,000 TO $50,000 Five years for every commercial and 
industrial structure 

$50,000 TO $100,000 Eight years for every commercial and 
industrial structure 

In excess of $100,000 Fifteen years for every commercial and 
industrial structure 

 
SEC. 5: The Development Program Manager is hereby designated as the 

“Housing Officer” for all purposes pursuant to Section 3735.65 through Section 3735.69 
of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 



 3

SEC. 6: Only rehabilitation or construction projects completed after the 
effective date of this Resolution shall be eligible for tax exemptions.  The tax exemption 
shall first apply in the year following the calendar year in which the certification is made 
pursuant to section 3735.67 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

SEC. 7: For the purposes of this Resolution, all definitions set forth in 
Section 3735.65 through Section 3735.70 of the Ohio Revised Code are adopted by 
reference. 
 

SEC 8:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: __________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: __________________________ 
      REBECCA J. COOL 
      CLERK OF COMMISSION 
       



 

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT
 

 
For the Regular Meeting of        September 21, 2010 

 
      

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM:    William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Community Reinvestment Area Program – CRA Area #5 

Amendment  
 
        

PURPOSE:
 

The purpose of this resolution is to amend Community Reinvestment Area #5 to include new 
areas in which development and redevelopment should be encouraged. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:

 
City Staff recommends that the City Commission adopt the resolution amending Community 
Reinvestment Area #5 to include the areas roughly bounded between Unites States Route 
36 (East Ash Street) and Garbry Road.  These areas are primarily commercial and 
industrial and include the Miami Valley Center Mall. 

      
BACKGROUND:

 
The Community Reinvestment Area is a locally administered program in which private 
property owners make investments in property and in return the property taxes on the 
improvements made are forgiven for a period from anywhere from five to fifteen years, 
dependent upon the level of investment.  The investment may take the form of either the 
new construction of a building or facility, or any remodeling of an existing structure. 
 
The community currently has seven Community Reinvestment Areas and this particular 
resolution is an amendment to Area #5 to include areas between United States Route 36 
(East Ash Street) and Garbry Road.  This area was shown since many of the properties in 
this area need redeveloped and by providing incentives to these targeted areas 
redevelopment of these areas is further encouraged.  Discussions with property owners in 
the area have indicated a willingness to undertake more investment if more incentive were 
available.   
 
It should be noted that according to state law, any amendment request must be 
accompanied with a housing study which outlines census data on housing issues in the 
affected area, a discussion of current property values and any property maintenance 
issues that may exist in the area.  The housing study is attached for review. 

 
ALTERNATIVES:

 



City Commission may decide not to adopt the resolution, in which case, the amendment 
would not be approved and the newly proposed area would not have the same incentives 
as other areas of the community in need of redevelopment.  
 
 
DISCUSSION:

 
Community Reinvestment Area #5 was first established in January 1994.  Since that time 
five projects have been granted Community Reinvestment Area incentives, which have led 
to $4,340,983 in direct property investment in the community.  For end users of the 
program, there is no cost to participate in the program and administration of the program 
is very simple.  Applicants which demonstrate investments made to the property are 
automatically approved and the county auditor begins the process of “freezing” property 
tax rates at their pre-improvement level. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:

 
This program does have a financial impact in which the City will forgo some property tax 
revenue.  The end user will have their tax burden figured upon pre-development values.  
Additional investments made will not be taxed for up to fifteen years.  Generally, an 
increase of $100,000 in valuation will mean that $1,600 in additional taxes collected will 
be forgone.  Of that particular amount, the largest amount goes to the local school district; 
the city is estimated to forgo $320 per year.  However, the new improvements will 
undoubtedly create more jobs.  Each full time job that pays $8.80/hour will pay 
approximately $320 year in income taxes, making any loss of property tax revenue 
negligible when compared to the revenue generated through the income tax. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT:

 
The impact of this amendment to the Community Reinvestment Area Program will provide 
more incentives for property owners to make improvements in commercial, industrial and 
residential properties.  These improvements will help provide new economic opportunities 
for community residents. 
 
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES:

 
The proposed Community Reinvestment Area amendments are in compliance with city plans 
and policies to provide for improved economic opportunities for the community and 
providing tangible support for the community’s existing businesses. 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PIQUA 
HOUSING STUDY 

 
CENSUS TRACT:  3001 

 
SEPTEMBER 9, 2010 

 
 

PREPARED BY: 
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

CITY OF PIQUA 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OH  45356 
 



Purpose 
 
The purpose of this study is to document residential housing conditions located in 
portions of the City of Piqua.  This study is an integral part of the requirements necessary 
from the Ohio Department of Development in order for the City of Piqua to amend the 
boundaries of current Community Reinvestment Areas that exist within the City of Piqua.  
While the Ohio Department of Development mandates these studies for the proper 
administration of the Community Reinvestment Areas, the department does not specify 
the particular information or format of the report.  The City of Piqua’s Development 
Department has endeavored to provide enough pertinent information in this report to 
meet the standards of the Ohio Department of Development. 
 
The information in this study has come from the U. S. Census Bureau, the County 
Auditor of Miami County and other City Departments.   
 
Target Area 
 
The target area of this study is U. S. Census Bureau Census Tract 3001, though it should 
be noted that some areas of the census tract are not being proposed to be part of the 
amended Community Reinvestment Area; however, data does not exist for the block 
level which would have been more appropriate for this level of data analysis.  This area 
begin part of the Community Reinvestment Area roughly represents the southeastern 
portions of the City of Piqua.  The general boundary is the Great Miami River, East Ash 
Street, Garbry Road, the Piqua Bike Path/Recreation Trail, the CSX Rail Line the 
southern corporate limits, Piqua-Troy Road and Statler Road/Garnsey Street. 
 
Housing Demographics 
 
The 2000 Census reports that there are 1,643 units of housing located within the study 
area.  Within this figure, 8.2% of those units, or 136 were listed as currently vacant.  Of 
the remaining 1,507 units of housing, 61.9% of those units (933) were owner occupied 
and 38.1% (547) were renter occupied.  Within the 136 units of housing that were vacant, 
68 of those units were available for rent and 18 units were available for sale. 
 
Within the study area, the average housing unit had 5 rooms.  Additionally, a clear 
majority (66.3% or 1,089 units) were single family housing units.  There were 112 
(10.2%) units of mobile home housing.  The remaining housing units (501 units or 21%) 
were located in those buildings having three or more units of housing.  The average house 
built in the study area was built during the 1968. 
 
Housing Rent and Sales Figures 
 
The average rent for a house within the study area was reported to be $486 per month for 
the 2000 U. S. Census.  Most units had charged rent of $450 to $499 per month. 
 
 



Sketch of Housing Values 
 
For purposes of this study, ten houses were chosen to provide a general sketch of the 
housing values in the study area. 
 
901 Garbry Road Single Family Residence 
Land Value $11,000 Square Footage 748 
Improvement Value $36,500 Bathrooms 1 Full/0 Half 
Total Value: $47,500 Bedrooms 3 
 
903 Garbry Road Single Family Residence 
Land Value $10,900 Square Footage 1224 
Improvement Value $43,300 Bathrooms 1 Full/0 Half 
Total Value: $54,200 Bedrooms 2 
 
110 Staunton Street Single Family Residence 
Land Value $7,300 Square Footage 1337 
Improvement Value $27,000 Bathrooms 1 Full/0 Half 
Total Value: $34,300 Bedrooms 2 
 
500 Cleveland Street Single Family Residence 
Land Value $8,300 Square Footage 1296 
Improvement Value $36,600 Bathrooms 1 Full/0 Half 
Total Value: $44,900 Bedrooms 3 
 
201 Fourth Street Single Family Residence 
Land Value $6,700 Square Footage 936 
Improvement Value $24,400 Bathrooms 1 Full/0 Half 
Total Value: $31,100 Bedrooms 2 
 
 
Violations 
 
According to figures from the City of Piqua’s Health Department, there are currently 113 
outstanding property maintenance violations located throughout the city.  In the target 
area, there are 12 violations representing 10.6% of the total violations in the community. 
 
Field Observations 
 



 

325 Cleveland Street- This house has 
large amounts of peeling paint and is in 
need of a new coat of paint.  There are also 
missing gutters and downspouts. 

214 First Street (Accessory Structure) – 
This structure is severely weathered and is 
in need of a fresh coat of paint and is 
missing gutters and downspouts. 

503 First Street – This house is in need of 
a new coat of paint. There are also missing 
gutters and downspouts.  

214 First Street – This house has concrete 
steps that are in severe disrepair as well as 
in need of paint. 

 



                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-110-10 
 

 
A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION 

           TO ISSUE A PURCHASE ORDER TO REYNOLDS INLINER, LLC 
    FOR THE WEST INTERCEPTOR SANITARY SEWER & SIPHON REPAIR 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the present operations of the City is to upgrade the Sanitary 
Sewer System; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the West Interceptor Sewer and Siphon lines have been 
identified as possible large contributors of inflow & infiltration to the Sanitary Sewer 
System; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Engineering for this project was performed by Camp Dresser 
and McKee Inc. of Cincinnati; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has advertised and received bid for this sewer 
rehabilitation project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Reynolds Inliner, LLC, is the lowest and best bid received that 
the engineer has reviewed and recommended; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: A contract for said services is hereby authorized and approved 
and payment not exceeding $318,683.00 is hereby authorized and approved for said 
services;  
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the City treasury in payment 
according to this Resolution; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of  Septemberl 21, 2010 

   
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Dave Davis 
  
SUBJECT: 36” West Interceptor Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
The City of Piqua Commission approval to award a bid to Reynolds Inliner, LLC for the 36” 
West Interceptor Sewer Rehabilitation Project.    
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval of this Resolution to award the bid for the work specified by our Engineer.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 In June of 2009 the city of Piqua had the engineering firm of Camp Dresser & McKee 
inspect the condition of the 36” West Interceptor Sewer along the west bank of the Miami 
River, along with giving the City of Piqua recommendations for replacement or repair. This 
also included bidding and construction services. 

 This particular section of  line is dated back to the late 20’s early 30’s and is part of 
the original Wastewater Plant Interceptor Sewer lines. The wastewater plant in the past 10 
years had found this line to have holes punched in it (2) by debris traveling downstream 
during high river flows.  

With this inspection it was found that a substantial amount of root penetration from the 
trees on the bank of the river had taken place. At these locations we anticipate water from the 
river (in high river level flows) seek their way into this 36” pipe and contribute to the amount 
of flow going to the Wastewater Plant, better known as “Inflow and Infiltration”. With this 
additional flow, it could be a direct contributor to the SSO’s that take place during wet 
weather events at the end of this interceptor.  
   
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Direct cut the ground in the area west of the current line and have new pipe installed at 
a price tag well over 2 million dollars. (Area around the new path behind Streets & 
Power Plant) 

2. Continue to operate WWTP Plant and have SSO occurrences during wet weather 
situations. OEPA would eventually impose findings and orders to completely mitigate 
the SSO.      

 



 Page 2 
 

 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 

The OEPA has asked the city of Piqua for a “Plan of Action” to remove our SSO 
in the next 5 year permit cycle, which is required by February 2011. 

 
 This particular project was not part of our original schedule in the last permit 
cycle, but due to the findings from CDM, OEPA has been informed of this project and 
is on board with the possibility of reducing the amount of occurrences of the SSO by 
performing this rehabilitation 
 

This  particular project is working our way back into the collection system 
before making a decision on a large Wastewater Plant improvement that could be a 
much larger price tag improvement.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Should the City decide to approve this project, the financial impact would be below estimated 
projections from the budget process for 2010. It was estimated $679,150 and at bid time had 
dropped to $550,000.  
 
Should the City not perform the rehabilitation, there could be major financial impact due to 
the OEPA wanting to remove all SSO’s from the receiving streams in Ohio. The EPA could 
impose findings and orders to perform certain rehabilitation like this project along with other 
projects that could escalate the amount of money we are looking to spend in the future.And all 
this would be on their schedule not the one we would propose.       
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 

The 36” West Interceptor Sewer is directly connected to the Sanitary Sewer Overflow 
gate on the west side of the Miami River. When the wet weather event causes this gate to open, 
sewage is directly discharged to the river. This discharge is a health concern that the OEPA 
wants the city of Piqua to mitigate the occurrences to their approval level. 
 
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The NPDES Permit being held by the wastewater plant charges the City of Piqua with 
removing the SSO occurrences from our system. This project could reduce the amount of 
water treated at the Wastewater Plant along with reducing the amount of SSO’s discharged to 
the river in a wet weather event, which is a major health remediation. 
 



C
ity

 o
f P

iq
ua

W
es

t I
nt

er
ce

pt
or

 S
an

ita
ry

 S
ew

er
 &

 S
ip

ho
n 

R
ep

ai
r P

ro
je

ct
 #

09
-0

3

IT
E

M
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

N
U

M
B

E
R

U
N

IT
S

U
N

IT
 L

A
B

O
R

U
N

IT
 

M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

U
N

IT
 T

O
TA

L
TO

TA
L 

IT
E

M
 

C
O

S
T

U
N

IT
 L

A
B

O
R

U
N

IT
 

M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

U
N

IT
 T

O
TA

L
TO

TA
L 

IT
E

M
 C

O
S

T
U

N
IT

 L
A

B
O

R
U

N
IT

 
M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
U

N
IT

 T
O

TA
L

TO
TA

L 
IT

E
M

 
C

O
S

T
LA

B
O

R
M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
TO

TA
L

TO
TA

L 
IT

E
M

 C
O

S
T

1
B

yp
as

s 
P

um
pi

ng
1

LS
$2

3,
60

0.
00

$3
5,

40
0.

00
$5

9,
00

0.
00

$5
9,

00
0.

00
$3

5,
00

0.
00

$0
.0

0
$3

5,
00

0.
00

$3
5,

00
0.

00
$5

,0
00

.0
0

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$1

5,
00

0.
00

$1
5,

00
0.

00
$6

2,
65

0.
00

$2
6,

85
0.

00
$8

9,
50

0.
00

$8
9,

50
0.

00

2
R

ou
gh

 C
le

an
in

g 
&

 R
oo

t 
R

em
ov

al
1

LS
$1

3,
86

0.
00

$9
,2

40
.0

0
$2

3,
10

0.
00

$2
3,

10
0.

00
$1

0,
00

0.
00

$0
.0

0
$1

0,
00

0.
00

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$9

,8
00

.0
0

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$1

9,
80

0.
00

$1
9,

80
0.

00
$1

5,
61

0.
00

$6
,6

90
.0

0
$2

2,
30

0.
00

$2
2,

30
0.

00

3
G

rit
 R

em
ov

al
, D

ew
at

er
in

g,
 a

nd
 

D
is

po
sa

l
1.

00
LS

$0
.0

0
$1

,6
54

.0
0

$1
,6

54
.0

0
$1

,6
54

.0
0

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$0

.0
0

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$1

0,
00

0.
00

$5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,0
00

.0
0

$2
,0

00
.0

0
$3

79
.4

0
$1

62
.6

0
$5

42
.0

0
$5

42
.0

0

4
D

em
ol

is
h 

E
xi

st
in

g 
M

H
 C

as
tin

g 
&

 L
id

6
E

A
$8

2.
80

$5
5.

20
$1

38
.0

0
$8

28
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
$2

00
.0

0
$1

,2
00

.0
0

$3
00

.0
0

$2
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$2

,1
63

.0
0

$9
27

.0
0

$3
,0

90
.0

0
$3

,0
90

.0
0

5
D

em
ol

is
h 

E
xi

st
in

g 
M

H
 

S
tru

ct
ur

e
5

E
A

$1
,6

53
.6

0
$1

,1
02

.4
0

$2
,7

56
.0

0
$1

3,
78

0.
00

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$1

5,
00

0.
00

$3
00

.0
0

$2
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

3,
87

0.
00

$1
0,

23
0.

00
$3

4,
10

0.
00

$3
4,

10
0.

00

6
N

ew
 S

an
ita

ry
 M

an
ho

le
4

E
A

$4
,6

80
.0

0
$3

,1
20

.0
0

$7
,8

00
.0

0
$3

1,
20

0.
00

$4
,5

00
.0

0
$4

,5
00

.0
0

$9
,0

00
.0

0
$3

6,
00

0.
00

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$5

,2
00

.0
0

$8
,2

00
.0

0
$3

2,
80

0.
00

$3
4,

02
0.

00
$1

4,
58

0.
00

$4
8,

60
0.

00
$4

8,
60

0.
00

7
M

an
ho

le
 R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n

2
E

A
$1

,6
20

.0
0

$1
,0

80
.0

0
$2

,7
00

.0
0

$5
,4

00
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$5

,0
00

.0
0

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$3

,5
00

.0
0

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$6

,5
00

.0
0

$1
3,

00
0.

00
$1

,8
06

.0
0

$7
74

.0
0

$2
,5

80
.0

0
$2

,5
80

.0
0

8
38

" C
IP

P
 L

in
in

g
10

66
LF

$7
3.

20
$4

8.
80

$1
22

.0
0

$1
30

,0
52

.0
0

$1
06

.0
0

$5
0.

00
$1

56
.0

0
$1

66
,2

96
.0

0
$7

5.
00

$1
90

.0
0

$2
65

.0
0

$2
82

,4
90

.0
0

$1
65

,2
83

.3
0

$7
0,

83
5.

70
$2

36
,1

19
.0

0
$2

36
,1

19
.0

0

9

36
" P

V
C

 S
D

R
35

 S
an

ita
ry

 
S

ew
er

 in
st

al
le

d 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

C
on

ne
ct

io
ns

, B
ac

kf
ill

, 
C

om
pa

ct
io

n,
 a

nd
 A

sp
ha

lt 
R

es
to

ra
tio

n

43
LF

$1
42

.2
0

$9
4.

80
$2

37
.0

0
$1

0,
19

1.
00

$2
50

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$3
50

.0
0

$1
5,

05
0.

00
$2

00
.0

0
$1

60
.0

0
$3

60
.0

0
$1

5,
48

0.
00

$1
4,

71
8.

90
$6

,3
08

.1
0

$2
1,

02
7.

00
$2

1,
02

7.
00

10
R

ec
on

ne
ct

 S
tre

et
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
La

te
ra

l
1

E
A

$7
93

.8
0

$5
29

.2
0

$1
,3

23
.0

0
$1

,3
23

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$2
,0

00
.0

0
$2

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,3
10

.0
0

$9
90

.0
0

$3
,3

00
.0

0
$3

,3
00

.0
0

11
C

le
ar

 a
nd

 G
ru

b 
Tr

ee
s/

R
oo

t 
R

em
ov

al
1

LS
$4

,3
00

.2
0

$2
,8

66
.8

0
$7

,1
67

.0
0

$7
,1

67
.0

0
$2

5,
00

0.
00

$0
.0

0
$2

5,
00

0.
00

$2
5,

00
0.

00
$4

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
$1

,8
02

.5
0

$7
72

.5
0

$2
,5

75
.0

0
$2

,5
75

.0
0

12
P

ip
e 

an
d 

M
an

ho
le

 T
es

tin
g

1
LS

$0
.0

0
$1

,6
17

.0
0

$1
,6

17
.0

0
$1

,6
17

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$4
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$3
60

.5
0

$1
54

.5
0

$5
15

.0
0

$5
15

.0
0

13
S

ite
 C

le
an

up
 a

nd
 R

es
to

ra
tio

n
1

LS
$2

,6
40

.0
0

$1
,7

60
.0

0
$4

,4
00

.0
0

$4
,4

00
.0

0
$2

0,
00

0.
00

$5
,0

00
.0

0
$2

5,
00

0.
00

$2
5,

00
0.

00
$8

00
.0

0
$4

00
.0

0
$1

,2
00

.0
0

$1
,2

00
.0

0
$3

,6
05

.0
0

$1
,5

45
.0

0
$5

,1
50

.0
0

$5
,1

50
.0

0

$2
89

,7
12

.0
0 

$3
52

,0
46

.0
0 

$3
89

,7
70

.0
0 

$4
69

,3
98

.0
0 

B
ID

 T
A

B
 

TO
TA

L 
B

A
S

E
 B

ID

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

05

TO
TA

L 
B

A
S

E
 B

ID

R
ey

no
ld

s 
In

lin
er

, L
LC

In
la

nd
 W

at
er

s 
P

ol
lu

tio
n 

C
on

tro
l, 

In
c.

 
U

til
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
ut

ho
rit

y,
 L

LC

TO
TA

L 
B

A
S

E
 B

ID

D
et

ro
it,

 M
I 4

82
10

TO
TA

L 
B

A
S

E
 B

ID

In
si

tu
fo

rm
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

ie
s,

 In
c.

17
98

8 
E

di
so

n 
A

ve
nu

e

D
at

e 
O

pe
ne

d:
  A

ug
us

t 3
1,

 2
01

0

40
86

 M
ic

hi
ga

n 
A

ve
. 

60
01

 S
ch

oo
ne

r

Q
U

A
N

TI
TI

E
S

H
ill

ia
rd

, O
H

 4
30

26
B

el
le

vi
lle

, M
I 4

81
12

41
43

 W
ea

ve
r C

ou
rt









              RESOLUTION NO.  R-111-10 
 

    A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
PUBLIC SAFETY INFORMATION SHARING RECORDS SYSTEM AGREEMENT 
 
 WHEREAS, the Cities of Piqua; Troy and Tipp City, Ohio along with the 
Villages of Covington and West Milton, Ohio have determined that it is in the best 
interest of the public thereof to fund jointly the purchase and operation of a Public 
Safety Information Sharing Records System hereto referred to as (PSISRS); and 
  
 WHEREAS, this agreement, attached hereto as “Exhibit A” is made and 
entered into by and between the Board of Commissioners of Miami County and the 
above mentioned Cities and Villages; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the expectation of the County, the Cities, and the Villages 
that, by entering into this Agreement, each of said parties will reduce the cost of the 
same incident to the separate operation of individual public safety information 
records systems; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the cost sharing/financial contributions of the creation, operation 
and maintenance of the PSISRS shall be divided amongst the County, the Cities and 
Villages with the County paying forty-two percent (42%) of the same and the balance 
of fifty-eight percent (58%) of said costs divided amongst the Cities, the Villages and 
any additional parties on the basis of percentages established through a formula 
whereby the relationship of the population of each said entity to the overall total of 
the populations of said subdivisions, as established by the most recent Federal 
Decennial Census; with the City of Piqua’s share being twenty-one percent (21%) of 
said agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a Public 
Safety Information Sharing Records System Agreement as attached hereto as 
“Exhibit A.”  
 

SEC. 2:  The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment 
according to the agreement terms as attached hereto as “Exhibit A” with the City of 
Piqua’s software share being $73,527.12 or (20.48% of the cost) and the second 
year maintenance share of $6,416.79. 

  
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 

 

    For the Regular Meeting of September 21, 2010 

        

   

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 

 

FROM: Bruce A. Jamison, Chief of Police 

  

SUBJECT: Resolution R-111-10, Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into a Public 

Safety Information Sharing Records System Agreement 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Approve the resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a public 

safety information sharing records system agreement. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval of Resolution R-111-10 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a public safety 

information sharing records system agreement. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

In August of 2008, the Miami County Police Chiefs (including the Sheriff) were advised that 

in 2009, the current system hosting our police records system at the Miami County 

Communications Center would no longer be supported.  Each agency would receive their data 

in raw form in the Fall of 2009 and the current hardware and software would not be supported 

in any way.  They system would not be turned off at that time, but no efforts would be made to 

keep it running and accessible.  We could expect it to last mere months beyond this point. 

 

The police chiefs then began the long and arduous task of agreeing to a collaborative and 

efficient solution that would encompass a records system tied into the Computer Aided 

Dispatch system, as has been the case since the inception of the Miami County 

Communications Center in March of 1990.  In the event that no such agreement could be 

reached, the 2009 City of Piqua budget included $125,000 capital in the police budget for a 

replacement system in case we would be forced to fund our own solution. 

 

During the course of 2009, the managers of the major cities in the county worked with the 

police chiefs and convinced the Miami County Communications Center Board of Directors 

and the Miami County Commissioners of the overall values and efficiencies of a shared 

records system that ties directly into the Computer Aided Dispatch system.  During the course 

of these discussions, the area fire departments also recognized the potential for increased 

public safety that could be realized with a shared system. 

 



 Page 2 

 

The Police Department included $90,000 in its approved 2010 City of Piqua budget for the 

replacement of the record system, and the county agreed to maintain the current system until it 

could be jointly replaced with costs shared by the various jurisdictions. 

 

Through the cooperation of the involved parties, tentative agreements have been reached to 

govern and fund the records system.  The system includes dispatch, fire, EMS, and law 

enforcement functionality and connectivity.  It will also allow for increased sharing with 

prosecutors and the courts.  Training has already begun on an aggressive timetable for 

implementation in December 2010.  Under the tentative agreement, the funds budgeted by the 

police department ($90,000) will cover expenses of the implementation, provided all 

jurisdictions obtain the necessary legislation. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Resolution 111-10, authorizing the City Manager to enter into a public safety 

information sharing records system agreement. 

2) Do not approve the Resolution and abandon the project.  

 

DISCUSSION: 

In taking advantage of attrition, we have already reduced the civilian staff of the police 

department.  We had this as a long-term objective for a couple years, but the reductions have 

occurred before we had the technology in place to support them.  We cannot maintain our 

current level of staffing AND our current workflow of the records we generate in service to 

the citizens of Piqua.  The current system is labor intensive and reliant on documentation on 

paper physically working through a series of reviews.  Then the written information is 

converted to computerized records in order to be located when requested by citizens and the 

courts.  It is also then in a format that can be analyzed to identify trends as we make important 

decisions as to the best allocation of our scarce police department resources.  We also have a 

multitude of mandated reports for various outside agencies that oversee police activities. 

 

There are two primary problems that would result from abandoning this project that has been 

underway for the past two years: 

 Our current system will cease to function within months of implementation of the new 

system by the rest of the county.  We would be left with no system for indexing the 

thousands of reports we take each year to be able to find them when legally needed. 

 We would need increased human resources to handle the processing of information 

collected by the police department and needed by its citizens and the larger criminal 

justice community. 

 

Considerable effort has been expended to find the most efficient and least costly solution to 

our need for a records system.  We have also established long-term agreement to keep us from 

being in such a precarious position in the future.  

 

The fire department has identified multiple advantages to this system.  They are actively 

involved in the implementation of this project.  Their expenses related to fire and EMS records 

will likely be reduced in the future due to the system chosen by the county public service 

agencies. 



 Page 3 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Despite some early information to the contrary, we have demonstrated that a shared system 

that integrates dispatch, law enforcement, fire, and EMS records is more affordable and 

efficient than separate systems purchased by each individual entity.  The $125,000 budgeted 

in 2009 was a realistic and reasonable amount for a system that would allow the police 

department to “go-it-alone.”   We now expect to pay less that 75% of this amount for a better 

system that will allow for increased safety and efficiency to several entities that serve the 

citizens of this city. This project is not only a decreased burden on the general fund of this city, 

it is a decreased burden to property taxes that support the sheriff’s operation and the sales 

taxes that support the dispatch operation. 

 

The $90,000 already budgeted for this project will cover the shared expenses directly incurred 

by approval of this resolution, as well as some Piqua-specific expenses necessary for 

connectivity and increased efficiencies the new system will provide. 

 

I have already participated in over forty hours of work towards a grant application to the State 

of Ohio for this project.  We are hopeful that the county will receive some funds to offset part 

of the expenses.  If so, the agreement authorized by this resolution dictates in a proportional 

benefit to the City of Piqua. 

 

COMMUNITY IMPACT: 

The community will benefit from better and faster access to public information produced by 

the police department in the performance of our routine duties.  We will have better 

information available for our resource allocation decisions, and it will be available almost 

instantly.  Prosecutors and the courts will have instant access to some of our information.  

And, city management and elected officials will benefit from better and more accessible 

information when they make specific inquiries. 

 

The efficiency of our reduced-staffed police department will increase as the more modern 

records system actually functions as a management tool for police activities.  We will be able 

to more closely manage and supervise officers’ activities, as well as direct them more 

efficiently as they carry out their daily tasks. 

 

Responding public safety personnel will be safer because much more information will be 

available to them due to the integration of dispatch, law, and fire records.  If the first 

responders are safer, so are the citizens they are responding to assist. 

   

CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 

This agreement is the culmination of the plans discussed and approved by the city commission 

for the past two years during budget preparation.  We have increased the advantage to the city 

from the original plans, based on the inclusion of the fire department with this project. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 





















              RESOLUTION NO.  R-112-10 
 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR 
THE MIA-WASHINGTON AVENUE RESURFACING 
PROJECT TO BARRETT PAVING MATERIALS, INC. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 4, 2010, this Commission passed Resolution No. R-
5-10 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to law, 
for the MIA-Washington Avenue Resurfacing Project; and 
  
 WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 
tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: A contract is hereby approved with Barrett Paving Materials, 
Inc.; as the lowest, responsible bidder for the MIA-Washington Avenue Resurfacing 
Project and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said 
bidder pursuant to contract specifications at a cost not to exceed $230,000.00 
 

SEC. 2: Ohio Department of Transportation, through the American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) will provide one-hundred (100%) percent of 
eligible project costs up to $206,937.10. 

 
SEC. 3: The LPA agrees to pay one-hundred percent (100%) of the 

cost which may be required which are not included in the original plans and 
specifications.  
 
 SEC. 4: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of September 21, 2010 

   
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Amy Havenar, City Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Award of contract for the MIA-Washington Avenue Resurfacing Project 
 
PURPOSE:   
Request for City Commission authorization to award a contract to Barrett Paving Materials, 
Inc. for the MIA-Washington Avenue Resurfacing Project.  Total cost not to exceed $230,000.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval of the Resolution to allow for the completion of the Washington Avenue Resurfacing 
Project. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission (MVRPC) contacted the Engineering 
Department the middle of June to inquire as to whether the City had any resurfacing projects 
that we could have “ready to go” so that MVRPC could recommend to the Federal Highway 
for funding through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA).  Bill 
Harding, Engineering Technician, was able to complete the plans and specifications for the 
Washington Avenue Resurfacing Project in an expedited manner to make this project eligible 
for ARRA funding by meeting the Ohio Department of Transportation’s (ODOT) deadlines.     
 
On September 10, 2010, two bids were received for the MIA-Washington Avenue Resurfacing 
Project and they are as follows: 
 

Contractor Bid Total 

Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. $206,937.10 

Walls Brothers Asphalt $236,261.00 

   
The limits of the Washington Avenue Resurfacing Project are Washington Avenue from North 
Street to Broadway (SR 66) for a total length of 0.91 miles.      
 



 Page 2 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve the Resolution to award a contract to Barrett Paving Materials, Inc.     
2) Do not approve the Resolution and do not complete the MIA-Washington Avenue 

Resurfacing Project.      
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The resurfacing project will consist of profile milling and overlaying of the roadway with a 
new asphalt surface.  The project will also include the placement of all new ADA compliant 
handicap ramps and pavement markings within the project limits.    
 
Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. has completed successful resurfacing projects for the 
City of Piqua, including the 2008 & 2009 Street Resurfacing Programs.  The request 
for authorization includes approximately 10% contingency for items of work which 
may be required which are not included in the original plans and specifications.       
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
An agreement was entered into between the City and the Ohio Department of Transportation 
establishing the MIA-Washington Avenue Resurfacing Project as a Local-Let Project which 
will be administered by the City of Piqua.  ODOT, through the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) will provide 100% percent of the eligible project costs up to 
$206,937.10.   
 
The City of Piqua will be responsible for paying 100% of any contingencies, if required, in 
excess of the $206,937.10 contract price.     
 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
The community has stressed the importance of improving the condition of the streets 
throughout the City.  The resurfacing of Washington Avenue will greatly enhance the 
aesthetics and the drivability of this roadway.  The biggest benefit to the community is that the 
City will be able to complete the resurfacing of Washington Avenue (0.91 miles) using 100% 
stimulus funds.         
     
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The common theme in the Plan It Piqua 2007 Comprehensive Plan Update was to improve the 
roadways within the City.  This was also a Commission directive in 2009.  The street 
resurfacing program is a way to help achieve those goals.   



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 P

IQ
U

A

M
IA

-W
A

S
H

IN
G

T
O

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

O
D

O
T

 S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

F
.

S
p

e
c
. 

N
o

.
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

N
U

M
B

E
R

U
N

IT
S

 U
N

IT
 P

R
IC

E
 

 U
N

IT
 T

O
T

A
L

 C
O

S
T

 
 U

N
IT

 P
R

IC
E

 
 U

N
IT

 T
O

T
A

L
 C

O
S

T
 

2
0

2
C

U
R

B
 R

E
M

O
V

E
D

, 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
5

9
2

.0
L

F
 $

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
8

.2
5

 
4

,8
8

4
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 $
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
.0

0
 

4
,7

3
6

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

2
0

2
W

A
L

K
 R

E
M

O
V

E
D

, 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
3

8
2

0
.0

S
F

 $
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
.5

5
 

5
,9

2
1

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 $

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

.0
0

 
7

,6
4

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
5

3
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
P

A
IR

, 
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

, 
A

S
 D

IR
E

C
T

E
D

 C
O

N
T

IN
G

E
N

C
Y

6
0

0
.0

S
Y

 $
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

9
.0

0
 

2
3

,4
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 $

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
0

.6
0

 
1

8
,3

6
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
5

4
P

R
O

F
IL

E
 M

IL
L

 6
' 
W

ID
E

, 
1

½
" 

T
O

 0
",

 A
L

O
N

G
 C

U
R

B
S

 &
  

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

S
6

4
1

8
.7

S
Y

 $
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
.8

0
 

1
1

,5
5

3
.6

6
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 $

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

.6
0

 
1

0
,2

6
9

.9
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
0

7
B

IT
U

M
IN

O
U

S
 T

A
C

K
 C

O
A

T
 @

0
.1

 G
A

L
/S

Y
1

9
2

4
.2

G
A

L
 $

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

.0
0

 
3

,8
4

8
.4

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 $
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
.4

2
 

6
,5

8
0

.7
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

4
4

8
1

/2
" 

A
S

P
H

A
L

T
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
, 

S
C

R
A

T
C

H
 C

O
U

R
S

E
 T

Y
P

E
 1

, 
P

G
2

5
6

.6
C

Y
 $

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

1
5

.2
0

 
2

9
,5

6
0

.3
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 $
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
4

3
.5

4
 

3
6

,8
3

2
.3

6
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

4
4

8
1

 1
/4

" 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

, 
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 T
Y

P
E

 1
, 

P
G

6
4

1
.4

C
Y

 $
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
1

5
.2

0
 

7
3

,8
8

9
.2

8
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 $

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

4
3

.3
3

 
9

1
,9

3
1

.8
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
0

4
S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

 M
A

N
H

O
L

E
 A

D
J
U

S
T

E
D

 T
O

 G
R

A
D

E
1

2
.0

E
A

 $
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
0

0
.0

0
 

3
,6

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 $

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

2
5

.0
0

 
3

,9
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
0

4
S

T
O

R
M

 M
A

N
H

O
L

E
 A

D
J
U

S
T

E
D

 T
O

 G
R

A
D

E
1

4
.0

E
A

 $
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
0

0
.0

0
 

4
,2

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 $

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

2
5

.0
0

 
4

,5
5

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
0

4
W

A
T

E
R

 V
A

L
V

E
 A

D
J
U

S
T

E
D

 T
O

 G
R

A
D

E
2

7
.0

E
A

3
5

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
4

5
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
2

5
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,3

7
5

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

6
0

8
C

U
R

B
, 

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 P

IQ
U

A
, 

T
Y

P
E

 6
5

9
2

.0
L

F
1

5
.4

5
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9

,1
4

6
.4

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
8

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
0

,6
5

6
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

6
0

8
6

" 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 W

A
L

K
3

8
2

0
.0

S
F

3
.6

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
3

,7
5

2
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

5
,2

8
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
0

8
C

U
R

B
 R

A
M

P
, 

T
Y

P
E

 A
 T

H
R

U
 G

 W
/ 

T
A

C
T

IL
E

3
7

.0
E

A
1

5
5

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
5

,7
3

5
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
4

5
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
,0

6
5

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

6
1

4
T

R
A

F
F

IC
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

1
.0

L
U

M
P

9
,3

5
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
9

,3
5

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
,7

2
8

.0
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
8

,7
2

8
.0

5
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
4

4
4

" 
D

O
U

B
L

E
 Y

E
L

L
O

W
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 L

IN
E

0
.1

4
6

M
I

1
3

,3
7

7
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

,9
5

3
.0

4
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
3

,6
0

9
.9

3
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

,9
8

7
.0

5
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
4

4
2

4
" 

S
T

O
P

 B
A

R
3

6
.0

L
F

6
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
1

6
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
1

6
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
4

4
6

" 
C

R
O

S
S

W
A

L
K

 L
IN

E
7

6
.0

L
F

3
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
2

8
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
2

8
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
6

6
P

R
U

N
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 T
R

E
E

S
, 

A
L

L
 S

IZ
E

S
 -

 A
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
E

D
2

9
.0

E
A

9
5

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,7

5
5

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

5
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
7

2
5

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

S
P

E
C

.
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 S
IG

N
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

2
E

A
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

,2
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
O

T
A

L
 B

A
S

E
 B

ID
 $

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
0
6
,9

3
7
.1

0
 

T
O

T
A

L
 B

A
S

E
 B

ID
 $

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
3
6
,2

6
1
.0

0
 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 "

A
"

D
A

Y
T

O
N

, 
O

H
G

R
E

E
N

V
IL

L
E

, 
O

H

B
id

 T
a
b

u
la

ti
o

n

B
A

R
R

E
T

T
 P

A
V

IN
G

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

 I
N

C
.

W
A

L
L

S
 B

R
O

S
. 

A
S

P
H

A
L

T
 C

O
.,

 I
N

C
. 

B
ID

 O
P

E
N

IN
G

: 
 S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 1
0

, 
2

0
1

0
 A

T
 2

:0
0

 P
.M

.

2
5
5
1
 N

E
E

D
M

O
R

E
 R

D
3
6
9
0
 H

O
L

L
A

N
S

B
U

R
G

 S
A

M
P

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D

Q
U

A
N

T
IT

IE
S



RESOLUTION NO. R-113-10 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2011 UNITED STATES 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY BROWNFIELD ASSESSMENT 

PROGRAM APPLICATION 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua is a unit of local government that possesses 
the legal authority to apply for funding from the Brownfield Assessment Program 
offered by the United States Environmental Protection Agency; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has identified portions of the community in 
which environmental hazards may exist, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua desires financial assistance to provide for 
environmental assessments on these portions of the community to determine the 
necessary and required level of remediation for specific properties in order to 
make these properties able to be reused, and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereof 
concurring, that: 
 
 SEC. 1. The Fiscal-Year 2011 Brownfield Assessment Grant 
Program is hereby supported and the City Manager is hereby authorized and 
directed to submit the City’s program application to the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency, including all understandings and assurances 
therein.  The approved activities are:  Phase One and Phase Two environmental 
assessments on all eligible properties. 
 
 SEC. 2. The City Manager is to be the designated agent of the 
program in connection with the application and is authorized to execute all 
agreements in conjunction with the Fiscal-Year 2011 Brownfield Assessment 
Grant Program. 
 
 SEC. 3 This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:  ____________________ 
 
ATTEST:  _____________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
       CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT
 

 
For the Regular Meeting of        September 21, 2010 

 
For the Special  Meeting of    
 
For the Study Session of     
 
      

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM:    William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
  
SUBJECT: U. S. EPA Brownfield Assessment Grant Application  
 
        

PURPOSE:
 

The purpose of this resolution is to support the City’s application for funding from the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency through the Brownfield Assistance Grant Program 
to perform Phase I and Phase II Environmental Assessments in the community. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:

 
City Staff recommends that the City Commission adopts the resolution supporting the 
application for funding from the United States Environmental Protection Agency. 

      
BACKGROUND:

 
Our community has many parcels that can be defined as a “brownfield”.  A “brownfield” is 
any parcel of land that is under-utilized that may or may not have environmental 
contamination.  Through this federal grant program, the City has the opportunity to apply 
for funding to perform Phase I and Phase II environmental assessments.  These studies 
thoroughly documents what environmental contamination, if any, may exist on these 
properties and provide guidance on how such contaminations may be mitigated to ensure 
that these properties can be redeveloped. 

 
ALTERNATIVES:

 
City Commission may decide not to adopt the resolution, in which case, the city would not 
have the opportunity to apply for these funds this year. 

 
DISCUSSION:

 
Over the past three years, the City of Piqua has applied for the $400,000 program and 
last year, the City’s application rated “moderately high” indicating that the application will 
be favorably reviewed this year.  It should be noted that this program is highly competitive 
in which only about 20% of application in any given year are funded.   
 
Further, the program provides owners of industrial and commercial property which is 
underutilized the opportunity to have Phase I and Phase II environmental assessments 
completed on their property.  Each Phase I assessment has a cost of roughly $5,000 and a 



Phase II environmental assessment can cost roughly $30,000; therefore, the free assistance 
provided to the property owner can be as much as $35,000.  It should also be noted that 
the program is voluntary and that the results of the assessments are not disclosed to the 
Environmental Protection Agency for enforcement.  Rather, property owners that enter into 
the grant program are part of the “Voluntary Action Program” which demonstrates to the 
EPA that the applicant is willing to work with the community to get environmentally sensitive 
properties cleaned up. 
 
Additionally, having these environmentally sensitive areas cleaned up can lead to having 
more economic investment in these properties.  Knowing that environmental issues are being 
addressed and cleaned up provides property developers with a clean bill of health on 
these properties leading to more productive reuse. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:

 
The grant application will be for $400,000.  There is no required match for the program 
and the financial impact for the program will be minimal. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT:

 
The impact of this program will provide grant funding for property owners to make better 
understand the environmental concerns for properties that they own.  These assessments will 
help provide guidance on clean up for these properties which will lead to redevelopment.  
Additionally, further grant funding can be applied for; however, having the requisite 
environmental assessments are necessary before any additional grant funding can be 
received. 
 
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES:

 
The proposed program is in compliance with city plans and policies to provide for 
improved economic opportunities for the community and providing tangible support for the 
community’s existing businesses. 



                                       RESOLUTION NO. R-114-10 
 

 
A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO ISSUE A PURCHASE 
ORDER TO MORRIS HEATING COOLING ELECTRICAL FOR THE 2010 MOTE       
PARK COMMUNITY CENTER BUILDING REPAIRS PROJECT 
 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 4, 2010, this Commission passed Resolution No. R-
5-10 authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise for bids, according to law, for the 
2010 Mote Park Community Center Building Repairs Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after solicitation of bids, Morris Heating Cooling Electrical has 
been determined to be the best, responsible bidder; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized for a not to exceed 
amount of $85,400 to Morris Heating Cooling Electrical for the necessary repairs for 
the 2010 Mote Park Community Center Building Repairs Project; 

 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the City treasury in payment 
according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $85,400; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 







RESOLUTION NO. R-115-10 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF FUNDS NOT TO EXCEED 
$219,955 TO BROWNFIELD RESTORATION GROUP, LLC FOR THE WORK 

BEING COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CLEAN OHIO ASSISTANCE 
FUND GRANT RECEIVED BY THE MIAMI COUNTY PARK DISTRICT AND 

CERTIFYING FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE FOR THE EXPENDITURE 

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2009, this Commission passed Resolution No. R-
80-09 authorizing the Miami County Park District to submit an application for funding to 
the Clean Ohio Assistance Fund for the completion of a Phase II Environmental 
Assessment for the Piqua Power Plant Site; and 

WHEREAS, the State Controlling Board on March 8, 2010 approved the 
Miami County Park District’s grant request through the Clean Ohio Assistance 
Fund for a Phase II Environmental Assessment for the Piqua Power Plant Site; 
and  

WHEREAS, after solicitation of Request for Qualifications, Brownfield Restoration 
Group, LLC has been determined to be the most qualified provider of these services; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that 

 SEC. 1:  The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment 
according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $219,955; 

 SEC. 2:  The City shall submit all necessary documents to the Miami 
County Park District for the reimbursement of all costs incurred with the Phase II 
Environmental Assessment at the Piqua Power Plant; 

 SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT
 

 
For the Regular Meeting of   September 21, 2010 

 
For the Special  Meeting of    
 
For the Study Session of     
 
      

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM:    William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Request for Resolution – Adoption of Resolution Authorizing the 

Expenditure of $219,955 to Brownfield Restoration Group, LLC for 
work being completed at Piqua Power Plan funded through the 
Clean Ohio Assistance Fund and certifying funds are available. 

 
        

PURPOSE:
 

 
The purpose of this resolution is to certify that funds are available and authorizing the 
expenditure of $219,955 to Brownfield Restoration Group, LLC for a Phase II 
environmental assessment being completed at the Piqua Power Plant and being funded 
through the Clean Ohio Assistance Fund. 
      
RECOMMENDATION:

 
 
City Staff recommends the City Commission adopt the resolution allowing the Phase II 
Environmental Assessment to move forward.      

 
BACKGROUND:

 
 
On September 8, 2009, the City Commission adopted a resolution authorizing the Miami 
County Park District to apply for Clean Ohio Assistance Fund for a Phase II Environmental 
Assessment for the Piqua Power Plant located at 919 S. Main St.  It should be noted that 
due to grant regulations, the City could not apply for the funding, rather the Park District 
was identified as an allowable applicant and agreed to apply for the funding on the city’s 
behalf.   
 
The grant request was subsequently approved by the State of Ohio and a joint committee 
of the City of Piqua and the Miami County Park District reviewed Statement of 
Qualifications and Brownfield Restoration Group, LLC was determined to be the most 
responsive and most qualified provider of the services outlined in the Clean Ohio Assistance 
Fund Grant Agreement.  The Park District entered into a contract with Brownfield 
Restoration Group, LLC to perform the work.   
 



Since the Clean Ohio Assistance Fund is a reimbursement program, the Park District has 
requested that the City of Piqua pay for the services and then request reimbursement from 
the State of Ohio through the Park District. 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES:

 
1. Approve the Resolution 
2. Do not approve the Resolution and provide further direction 
 
DISCUSSION:

 
The City of Piqua needs to adopt this resolution to ensure that payment can be made to the 
vendor and that the proper documentation can be provided to the Park District and the 
State of Ohio to ensure that the City will be properly reimbursed.  This is a unique 
arrangement within the Clean Ohio Assistance Fund and the State of Ohio has indicated 
that they are comfortable with the arrangement.      

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:

 
The financial impact to the City of Piqua is negligible since the City of Piqua will be 
reimbursed through the Clean Ohio Assistance Fund for all expenditures. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT:

 
The impact of the Phase II Environmental Assessment is potentially far reaching for the 
community.  It should be noted that the remediation of environmentally contaminated 
properties exist in a highly regulated environment in which the proper environmental studies 
must be completed before clean-up activities can take place.   
      
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES:

 
The Piqua Power Plant, especially since 2009, has long been seen as a targeted area for 
redevelopment, as evidenced through the recent adoption of the City of Piqua’s ReDo 
(Redevelopment Opportunities) Piqua Plan which has identified the site as a priority site for 
redevelopment in the community.   
 




